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VISION AND COMMITMENTS R+ Zobun’ (e Lttt v

OUR VISION

Our vision is to be the leading market and end user oriented cement company all across Eastern Africa, with a strong and
clear dedication t¢ our communities.

OUR COMMITMENTS

We will achieve this by:

Being a caring company that is dedicated o heaith and safety of our employees, community and the environment.
Achieving a sustainabie market leadership in the region.

Enhancing our understanding of the customers and striving for innovations and market developments.

Maintaining our profitability so as to add value 1o our investors.

Devealoping our people and attracting the best so that they can give superior perfomance.

OUR VALUES

The Lafarge brand stands for commitment 1o excelience and the values of the group are expressed in the ‘Lafarge Way'.
THE LAFARGE WAY

Courage, integrity, commitment, consideration for others and an overriding concern for the group’s interest are the
foundations of our management philosophy. Every empioyee is expected to demonstrate commitment to these values,

MAKING OUR PEOPLE SUCCESSFUL

. Expecting people to give their best
. Leading by example
. Achieving greater results through teamwork

FOCUSING ON PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT
. Resulting from actions of all 6 7
. Making performance a daily commitment l007 0 y

. Sharing systems and tools

WITH A 'MULTI LOCAL ORGANISATION

. Building on our local and global strengths

. Making our Business Units successful by leveraging the resources of a decentralised organisation
. Sharing ciear processes and a fimited number of respected and known rules
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;,  CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

| am pleased to report ancther year of good performance
and improved results, in a very challenging business
environment. The year ended with the East African region
experiencing a severe drought, Kenya being the worst
affected.

Despite the prevailing drought, Kenya and Uganda
economies both recorded promising growth. Kenya's GDP
grew by 5%. Improved performance in key sectors like
tourism and commodities spurred resurgence in the
economy, which in turn led to growth in the domestic
cement rarket. The drought caused food prices to rise,
lifting inflation to 10.3%. However, interest rates remained
stable. We believe that the Kenya economy will continue on
a steady recovery path, in spite of the drought and some
concems over financial governance in the Government.

In Uganda attention was focussed on the just concluded
presidential and parliamentary elections, the first to be held
under multiparty systern in 26 years. During the political
transition process, some concerns were raised about how
committed the government was to democratic reform. The
elections were held peacefully on 23 February 2006 and the
incumbent president was re-elected.

As in Kenya, economic performance in Uganda was partly
affected by the drought prevailing in the region, which led to
a reduction in agricultural output, and lower GDP growth at
4%. Falling water levels in lake Victoria have reduced hydro-
pawer production and at the start of 2008 the country was
faced with power rationing and higher power prices.
. Interest rates declined steadily during the year, with rates on
Government treasury bills averaging
8% at year end. Overall inflation
was 3.5%.

On the operations front, we
continued to suffer from poor
quality power in Uganda and
from high energy prices in both
countries. In Uganda, we
will install a power
generator to ensure
power availability
and quality by
June 2006 and in
Kenvya, the
government
plans to
purchase
Bmergency
generating
units which
we hope will
stabilise the
supply of
power aibeit

at a much higher cost.

We had to contend with strong pressures on logistics and
rising manufacturing costs as a result of poor infrastructure
and increasing prices of fuel. We mitigated the impact of
increased operating costs by various efficiency and cost
contral initiatives, and whers necessary, through
compensatary adjustment of our selling prices.

Inspite of this constraints, the group recorded a profit after
tax of Kshs 2 billion, an increase from last year by 16%.
This was achieved with increased domestic sates in Kenya
and increased expert sales to Uganda. We also had
significant growth in our exports to inland Africa markets, a
direct result of our improved commercial and logistics
organisation.

With this strong performance and good cash generation,
we were able to pay dividends to sharehalders of Kshs 1.9
bilion {2004: Kshs 2.2 bilion} and still maintained a healthy
group cash balance.

Our focus on Corporate Social Responsibility has been in
the areas of education, health, safety and the environment.
In education our bursary programme has supported
students in secondary schools, colleges and at universities.
in 2005 we adopted Lafarge best practice for rehabilitation
development and initiated a project on rehabilitation master
planning. With respect to the Green schools project, 53
tanks were constructed and the total number of seedlings
planted increased to 123,568, Haller Park, our
enviranmental showcase, continued to be a key attraction
both to international and domestic tourists. The park
gained international recognition in the year from the
success story of two animal characters Owen & Mzee,
whose peculiar behaviour inspired the writing of a book
which recently featured on the New York Best Sellers list.
And in January 2008 we contributed Kshs 5 million through
the Red Cross to the drought refief effort in Kenya.

Safety continues to be one of our main key values. We
believe that no one should get injured or lose their life as
they add value to our company's stakeholders. In 2005, we
improved our accident monitoring systems to not only
report and investigate lost time incidences, but ta also
report and investigate near misses, with the aim of taking
appropriate corrective actions to prevent potential
accidents. This system covers all our contractors and
employees at our plants as well as on the road to the
destination of our products.

| am happy to report that Bamburi Gement Limited was fully
compliant with the Sarbanes Oxley Act in terms of business
processes, business controls and control environment. The
challenge now is to maintain this position in 2006 and
beyond. During 2006, we intend to confirn compliance to
the requirements of the Sarbanes Oxley Act by the other



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

companies within the group. We remain confident of the
potential robustness of the East African economies and
anticipate sustained growth of the cement market.

We will continue looking for growth opportunities in the
regional markets. By optimising our logistics operations,
while at the same time lowering our production costs by
raising the standard of efficiencies in all our processes. This
will enable us to achieve our vision of being the leading
market and end user oriented cement company all across
Eastern Africa, with a strong and clear dedication to our
communities.

| take this opportunity to thank the management and staff
of the group for their commitment, loyalty and dedication
that has produced another year of good results. | afso wish
to thank the board of directors for their unwevering support,
encouragement and constructive contributions during our
deliberations.

We now look forward to an even better 2006.

RICHARD KEMOL|
CHAIRMAN




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RICHARD KEMOLI(70) holds a Bachelor of Science degree, Economics from Makerere University, Kampala and a
Diploma in Management Studies, Regent Street Polytechnic (now University of Westminster, London;.

He is the Chairman of the Bamburi Cement Limited Board of Directors. He has 33 years experience with
GCommonweatth Development Corporations - East Africa Region and is a director in several companies.

MICHEL PUCHERCOS(48) is a graduate of the Ecole Polytechnique (1976) and the Ecole Nationale du Génie
Rural, des Eaux et des Foréts (1981). Michel started his career in the French Ministry of Agriculture in 1982-1989. He
has served as Director of Strategy and Supplies in Orsan, a Lafarge subsidiary from 1989-1892. in addition, he has
worked in senior executive positions in a number of Agro- Food and Chemical Industries in Europe as follows:
from 1992-1994 in Jungbunzlauer SA as Executive President, from 1994-1996 as General Manager of the Cara
group and from 1996 -1998 Doux, as Executive Vice President of this leading European group specializing in
poultry.

Michel returned to Lafarge in 1898 when he was appointed as Director of Strategy and Information Systems of the
Gypsum division of Lafarge. In 2003, he moved 10 the Cement Divislon as Director of Cement strategy, until his
reassignment to Bamburi Cement as Managing Director in September 2005.

ANTONY HADLEY{47) is the Regional President LAFARGE Africa. He is a Mechanical Engineer who graduated
from London's imperial Caliege in 1980. For 18 years, Tony worked in the ail industry for Schlumberger in many
roles, living and working in North and South America, Eurcpe and Africa. )

In 1999, he joined Blue Circle Industries in the UK. with responsibility for Africa. Following the acquisition of Blue
Circle by Lafarge in 2001, Tony was appointed as Regiona! President for Lafarge {Africa Operations). Lafarge has
cement manufacturing operations in Nigeria, Benin, Cameroon, Kenya, Uganda, Tanzania, Zimbabwae, Zambia,
Malawi and South Africa.

JEAN CLAUDE HILLENMEYERI(69) is a graduate engineer from Ecole Centrale des Aris et Manufactures, Paris
and holds an MBA from "Institut o’ Administration des Enterprises”,

He is the acting Chairman of the Audit Committee. He has held several positions in the Lafarge Group both in
France and internationally before retiring in August 1998 and is currently an independent consultant. He has 45 years
of experience in the cement industry which has been very valuabie to Bamburi Cement Limited as it goes tirough
change.

AMB. SOLOMON W KARANJA({69) is a BA graduate of Makerere University and holds an MA from University of
London. He has worked as a Deputy to the University of East Africa, Registrar, and was the first Kenyan University of
Nalrobl, Registrar. Subsequently he held the position of Executive Chairman, East Africa Portiand Cement Company
for twelve years after which ha was appeinted Executive Chairman Nationai Bank of Kenya in 1887,

Ha has served as Chalrman Kenya Goif Union and Muthaiga Golf Club as well as a Diractor Muthaliga Country Ciub
and Chairman Fidelity Shieid insurance Company.

Ha has servad on a number of Government appointed commissions into the affairs of the university and is currently
on the University inspection Board recently set up by the Prasident to raview the operations of tha pubiic and private
universities in Kenya.

DAVID NJOROGE(35) is a holder of a Bacheior of Commerce degree (Accounting option) and is a Certified Pubiic
Accountant. Ha has attended managerial, financial and leadership related coursas botn locally and internationally
including seasions In INSEAD.

He joirad the Company in 1989 as Finance Manager, a position he held untit 2002 when he was promoted to Group
Finance Diractor, He oversees tha finance, information systems and legal functlons in the Group.

He |8 aiso a diractor at the Nairobl Stock Exchange where he chairs the audit committee, He has several years
axperienca in finence and control,
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ELMOR LEOQ(62) holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Pretoria and a Masters of Business
Administration degree from the same universtty.

He is the Managing Director of Lafarge South East Africa. He has served in various positions within the Group and
has experience spanning over 20 years in the cement industry.

CHRIS KISIRE(39) is a holder of a Bachelor of Commerce {(Accounting) and a Masters of Business Administration
degree from the University of Nairobi. He also holds a Certified Public Accountant of Kenya, CPA {K) qualification, He
is a member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK). Mr Kisire was appointed to the Board
on 1 October 2004. He is currently the Group Finance and Administration Director of The Standard Group Limited.
He has warked for more than ten years in the finance field bath locally and internationally (Zimbabwe and United
Kingdom).

SHEILA M"MBIJJEWE(48) is a Chartered Accountant {{CAEW) and a CPA Kenya. Sheila’s previous jobs have
included the Finance Director position at PricewaternouseCoopers, Stagecoach International, and most recently with
Standard Chartered Bank Kenya. She is currently a member of the Bamburi Audit Cormmittee and the Board. She is
also a member of the Monetary Policy Advisory Committee of the Central Bank of Kenya.

RACHEL LUMBASYOQ(55) has a Bachelor of Commerce degree {Accounting option) from the University of Nairobi
and has a CPA (K) qualification. Rachel worked in various senior audit positions in the Office of the Controlier and
Auditor General Kenya from 1975 to 1989 when she feft as Assistant Director of Audit. She then joined the National
Social Security Fund in March 1983 as the Chief Internal Auditor. She has worked in the Fund as the Internal Audit
Manager and Deputy Managing Trustee. In Dacember 2005 she was appointed the Managing Trustee and a
member of the NSSF Board. Rachel is also a member of the Rent Tribunal.

ALBERT SIGEI(33) is a Mechanical Engineering graduate from the University of Nairobi and is a Chartered Certified
Accountant, He also holds a Higher Diploma in information systems management and gualification in information
systerms audit. He has attended various training sessions, including an International l_eadership Development
Programme at INSEAD, one of Europe's leading business schools.

He joined Bamburi Group in 2002 as Group Contraller, Before joining Bamburi Cement, Albert worked within the risk
management and financial audit service of PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) for five and a half years, both in Nairobi
and London.

MBUVI NGUNZE(38) is a holder of Bachelor of Cammerce degree {Accounting option) and is a Chartered
Accountant England and Wales. Mr Ngunze joined Bambur Group in 1998 as Finance Manager, and was promoted
to the position of Finance Director in 1899, in 2002, he took up the positicn of Managing Director, Hima. He has
experience from the field auditing and consulting in his previous job, and has been significantly involved in the
strategic evolution of our business.

In 2000, Mr Ngunze attended a month Executive Development Program for International Leadreship at INSEAD,
France, one of Europe's leading business schaols.

Mr Nounze resigned on 28 February 2006 following his transfer to Lafarge SA Headquaters.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations

SAFETY, HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT

We give Health and Safety first priority and aim to operate
at world-class levels. No lost time accidents were recorded
at any of our sites during the year. The Nairobi Grinding
Plant achieved 5 years without a lost time accident in
November. Near miss reporting was given increased focus,
and the number of Incidents reported and investigated at all
sites increased tremendously from 579 1n 2004 to 3,211 in
2005, The Mombasa plant was awarded the Best Safety
improvement initiative award in Lafarge during the group’s
convention held in Lyon France.

Regrettably, we had six fatalities of contractors and third
parties invelved in the transportation of our product through
road accidents. Road accidents involving our transporters
are a big concern and we are committed to warking with all
our contracted transporters to minimise the risk on the
road. This will be one of the top priorities in 2006.

THE ECONOMY

The Kenyan economy performed strongly in 2005 with GDP
growth at 5%. The recovery was driven by increased output
in agriculture, resurgence of the tourism sector, and
increased building and construction activities. Interest rates
remained stable at between 11% and 13%. Underlying
inflation declined to 7.4% (2004: 10.4%) while overall
inflation was 10.3% (2004: 11.6%). The Shilling appreciated
against the euro by 4.4%.

In Uganda, the GDP growth in 2005 was estimated at 4%,
which was below the government target of 7% (2004:
5.0%). It was affected by a long dry season and reduced
agricultural output. Inflation was controlled during the year,
with headline inflation restricted to within 4% to 5%. Interest
rates decreased in the year ending at 8% on government
bills while the shiling strengthened against the Euro by 5%
compared to 2004. The power supply situation in the
country deteriorated as a result of falling water levels at the
main power station, related to the drought affecting the
region. The situation is expected to deteriorate further, with
significant effect on economic output in 2006.

The situation in the north of the country remained unstable,
slowing economic development in that region.

MARKET

In Kenya, domestic market growth was vibrant, recording
an 11.3% growth over 2004, This growth was driven by
increased demand for residential housing, with lower
mortgage interest rates helping to sustain resurgence in the
building and construction sector. There was also noted
investment by the goverament through the Cormmunity
Development Fund (CDF).

The overall estimated market in Uganda grew by 7.1% over
2004. Competition intensified in the western Uganda
markets as our main competitor installed additional
capacity during the year. We took response actions to
protect our market share.

Our performance in the export markets improved in 2005,
with greater penetration and support from our expanded
logistics capacity. Exports outside East Africa increased by
21% (51Kt) through higher volumes o Rwanda, Burundi,
Congo and Somalia. We are focused on these markets and
Sudan as potential growth areas and are prepared to
maintain our strong position in these markets.

East Africa Market Share Estimate

Bumburi Group

56 .

SALES

Our turnover in Kenya increased by 239%, lifted by growth in
the domestic and export markets, and price adjustments to
compensate for rising prices on production inputs. The
domestic market was stable through out the year. Export
volumes increased by 41% mainly due to increased
supplies to Uganda.

Turnover in Uganda increased by 29% resulting from a
stronger domestic market, growth in exports and higher
prices. The growth in the market was accompanied by
increased competitive pressure, due to increased
production capacity instalied by our competitor. However
we improved our market position, leveraging on our
logistics capabilities to serve the market from Kenya. Prices
were increased in the year to compensate for rising prices
of fuel, power and other factors of production.

Our marketing focus has been to strengthen the
relationship between our brands - ‘Nguwvu', "Multipurpose’,
‘Powerplus’ — and our customers. Through our mason's
training program, we have reached over 40,000 masons in
Kenya and Uganda.
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and Results of Operations entinueg)

We launched the first phase of our Buiiding Information
campaign, whose aim is to provide our customers with
reliable information. We introduced value propositions in the
last guarter starting with cur Nairobi customers, as part of
our drive to improve the overall service package for all our
customers.

We did not realise the gaing anticipated from public sector
infrastructure projects that were expected to commence in
the year such as concrete roads. We however remain
optimistic that some of these projects will commence in
20086.

Sales by Region (tonnes)

OPERATIONS

Mombasa Plant

Plant operations for 2005 showed marked improvement
with clinker production 8% higher than 2004, The plant
recorded improved Kiin refiability achieving 92.4%, (2004:
87%) and improved utilisation of both kilns, The stable
operations in turn contributed to lower fuel and power
consumption.

Unit maintenance costs were kept at 2004 levels. The plant
was affected by a 12% increase in power prices and by
rising fuel costs which pushed the cost of transporting
material from the quarries up.

We continue to make investments aimed at efficiency
improvement and cost reduction. Our key projects in 2005
were aimed at improving reliability. We have continued to
intensify team mobilisation activities in crder to enhance
empowerment and get the best of our people.

Nairobi Grinding Plant

Cement production at the Nairobi plant increased by 25%
to meet the increased demand particularly from exports,
We made progress towards optimising our material usage

and improved power efficiency by 3%,

Production costs increased in the year with rising clinker
transport costs and higher prices for power and cement
additives.

Hima Plant

Clinker production was 3% behind 2004 due to frequent
power interrugtions and a lower reliability. Cement
production was 9% lower than in 2004 mainly due to lower
clinker stocks and some process difficulties. We have since
resolved these problems and expect to reaiise gains from
increased capacity in 2006.

Poor power supply quality continued to affect plant
operations. In total, there were 298.9 hours of downtime on
kiln operations compared with 301 hours in 2004. In
addition to affecting equipment utilization, this situation
contributed to high fuel consumption in 2005, We expect
to instail a power generator to ensure power availability and
quality by June 2008. Cement costs were increased in the
year by power and fuel price increases, and higher raw
material prices for gypsum and pozzolana.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE PROJECTS

Cur major capital projects in the year were at the Hima
plant where our focus was to increase the plant's capacity
and efficiency. We spent over Kshs 185m on productivity
and efficiency improvement works, and a further

Kshs 172m on plant sustaining projects. In Kenya the
largest project was the new truck yard constructed at the
Nairobi plant to enhance customer service and transporter
safety. The group spent Kshs 88m at the Mombasa plant
much of which was on projects that promise improved
efficiency and reliability of equipment. Total capital spending
in 2005 was Kshs 512m compared to Kshs 407m in 2004.

OUTLOOK

The prevailing drought in Kenya poses a threat to sustained
economic recavery. Rising cost of foad could accelerate
inflaticn. The low water levels in the hydrcelectric dams will
result in increased supply of power from thermal sources
which will lead to increased tariffs. The Government revised
GDP forecast for 2006 downwards from 6% to 5%, while
private sector projections are as iow as 3.5%. A slow down
in the economy would affect the cement market growth,
The government pians to arder emergency generating units
to cover the deficit in power supply. While these are
necessary measures to maintain economic activity, they will
lead to increased costs which will slow growth.
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The construction industry and the economy in general
should benefit from prudent Government policies aimed at
maintaining low inflation and stable exchange rates, and
from a healthy tourism sector. Lower interest rates and
recently introduced mortgage incentives will also provide
vital support to the construction sector.

We will remain focussed on expansion in high growth
potential Inland Africa markets. Our exports to Uganda from
Kenya should grow as production in our subsidiary there is
increasingly directed westward. Our logistics achievements
in 2005 are notable but we wil have to surpass them to
deliver even higher volumes expected in 2006 and to
further optimise costs. We will also focus on improving our
secondary logistics by expanding our capability to deliver
directly to domestic customers.

In Uganda, we expsct the domestic market demand to
continue to grow with government/donor funding for
infrastructure projects and individual home-builders. The
start of the year though has been slow on account of
presidential and general elections. The elections took place
peacefully and we expect the market to rebound and post
growth rate of up to 10%. We have in place the logistics to
sarve the market efficiently from Kenya and to achieve our
traditional market share. At our Kasese plant we are seeing
the benefit of modifications we made to our kiln at end of
2005 to improve output. We wilt be commissioning key cost
reduction projects early in the year. The power supply
situation is & major concern. The power generation
company has wamed of increased power disruptions and
higher tariffs. To address the disruption problem, we
ordered for 3MW generator which we expect 1o install in
Q2 2006.

Owverall, with our strong commercial organisation, efficient
logistics and improvements in efficiency and output at the
plant, we expect a better performance in 2006 and to keep
our leadership position.

GROUP HUMAN RESOURCES

Courage, integrity, commitment, consideration for others
and safe working practices are the pillars of our Human
resources policy. We demand and expect excaptional
performance from our employees and in return we aim {o
offer a challenging and motivating work environment.

As part of an international group we have been able to offer
our employees opportunity for growth and career
development through partnership with sister companies.
Qur employess’ skill level, their application to work and
innovative ideas have been recognized by the group. Our
aim is to build on the achieverments of the last five years to
accelerate our employess’ performance in the next 5 years.

The Leadsr for tomorrow program was introduced by the
Lafarge group as process 1o create the right mindset and
behaviours to succeed in the group’s vision of being the
undisputed world leader in building materials. We have
made strides towards entrenching this programme into our
normal operations: carmying out sessions to communicate
the principles to all our smployees. In the: year we also
carried out an employee satisfaction survey in the year as a
follow Up to a survey done in 2003 to determine whether
our employses feel that their concerns are being
addressed. Our total number of employees are split as
follows:

Employees by Business area

Conservation

am
Rehabilitation
1%

ADVANCE

Advance was introduced by the Lafarge group as an
accelerated performance programme in 2003. We have
made strides towards entrenching this programme into our
normal operations: all functions have appropriated the
methods of the programme, defining advance action plans
that are tracked regularly.

LAFARGE ECO SYSTEMS

This unigue environmental subsidiary has continued the
restoration of all exhausted quarries in order to create
diverse tropical forests that are also a reservoir of
endangered species in the Kenya coast. Development of
rehabilitation performance was a major objective of the
year. To achieve this the company is developing master
plans for quarry rehabilitation in all East African quarries.
Towards this end, baseline studies for all East African
quarries have been conducted, and detailed baseline maps
for Mombasa quarries are complete. The company also
protects limestone reserve lands. In 2005 the company
coordinated ecological surveys for the environmental impact
assessment of the proposed Dura Quarry in Uganda.
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A pleasant surprise in 2005 was international fame attracted

by Owen and Mzee. The 1 vear old hippo was rescued in Group Turnover
the sea near Malindi after the Tsunami separated him from Kshs million 15,045
his famity. Introduced into our famous restored quarry, Haller —

Park, the hippo named Owen immediately developed an 10,073 10411
affectionate friendship with one of the 13 giant tortoises,
named Mzee. Enchanting photographs of the pair appeared
in newspapers across the world and the company
published a top selling children’s book "Owen and Mzee"
that was faunched in New York. The publicity and visitors to
the website (>800,000) confirm that public interest in Owen
and Mzee are a perfect opportunity Lo raise awareness
about Lafarge’s environmental successes in rehabilitation of
quarries in East Africa.

BAMBURI SPECIAL PRODUCTS LTD

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
This subsidiary, the only company in its industry with 1SO M BamburiBrand [ Hima Brand
9001:2000 certification and with the Diamond Mark of
Quality for its products, manufactures paving blocks under
the brand name ‘BamburiBlox'. The company recorded a
30% increase in sales and an 85% increase in profit. As East Africa Sales Volume
part of its strategy, it produces other concrete products, Thousand tons

including pre-cast concrete products for affordable housing.
As part of its efforts to create new markets, the company
has successfully introduced the block paving concept in the
Horticulture and Floriculture industries, and continues to
pursue new uses of cement with various stakeholders,

GROUP FINANCIAL RESULTS

Group turnover increased by 22% driven by growth in the
domestic and regional markets, Export volumes increased
41% and 82% in Kenya and Uganda respectively, reflecting
our improved penetration into great lakes markets of
Rwanda, Burundi and Congo. Turnover is also higher on 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
account of adjustments to prices that were required to

compensate for rising costs of praduction. Weamburirand  [itimaBrand [ Clinker




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

Qur production and logistics costs were affected by the steep increase in world ol prices. Higher fuel costs led to increased
cost of production and transport. Further increases occurred in power prices and the price of all purchased raw materials.
The efficiency gains made in fuel and power consumption could not completely offset the cost increases, but they
contributed to the net improvement in operating result.

Combined operating profit improved by 34% benefiting from better sales, focus on cost control and improved efficiencies in

our production process.

Operating Profit Profit attributable to shareholders

Kshs million Kshs million

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

EARNINGS/DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

Group earnings per share rose by 16.5% to KShs 5.52 compared 1o KShs 4.74 in 2004. In 2004, the group paid a special
dividend on accourt of the 50th Anniversary Gelebrations.

. Earnings/dividends per share Shareholder Equity
Kshs per share 6.13 Kshs million

5.52
530

3.38

2.94
2.01 2.80

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

. EPS {Shs per share} D DPS {Shs per share)




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued

FINANCING AND CASHFLOW

The cash generation in the year remained strong, with sustained focus on working capital and treasury management.
Compared to last year, cash from operations is 5% lower because of our strategy to increase cement stocks for the
Uganda market to ensure adequate supply of our product.

KShs Million Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
Long term debt - - -
Short term borrowing —
net of cash balances (503) 632} {680) {638)

Total {(503) {632) 880) (638)

CASH FLOW - CONSOLIDATED

KShs million 2005 2004
Cash at the beginning of the year 632 849
Cash from cperations before tax 3,592 3,761
Net interast paid {18) (35)
Taxes paid {1,116} (847)

Investing activities:

ARM shares sale/bond purchase - 56
Purchase of fixed assets (426) {205)
Financing:

Dividend/lcans received - 7
Dividends to Bamburi sharsholders {2,055) {2,738
Dividend minority interests in Hima 83} (165)
Loan repayments B -
Effects of exchange rate changes (23) 51)
Cash at the end of the year 503 832

Investments and cashflows from opening activities Finance Costs

Kshs million Kshs million

1,973

265

| s

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2001 2002 2003 2005

. Net Cash used in Investing activities [:I Net Cashflew from operating activities )

The finance cost of Kshs 183 million includes an amount Kshs 152 million relating to exchange losses arising from
appreciation of the shilling versus US doilar.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

INTRODUCTION

Our Board and Executive committee are committed to
managing business at the highest standards of corporate
governance. The role of the Board is to assist in
determining the Group direction and strategy, monitoring
the achievement of business objectives, ensuring the Group
meets its responsibilities to its shareholders and that the
control environment adequately protects the Group's assets
against major risks it faces. The directors are responsible
for maintaining the Group’s systermns of internal control.
These controls are designed both to safeguard the Group's
assets and ensure the reliability of financial information used
within the business and for publication. As with any such
systemns, controls can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The key features of the governance structure and
processas and the internal financial control systems, which
operated satisfactorily throughout the period covered by the
financial statements, are described below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board of Directors

The Board comprises eleven directors, three of whom are
executive directors while eight are non-executive. Among
the non-executive directors, five are independent directors.
In addition to seeking a fair balance between executive and
non-executive directors, the appeintment of board
members also takes cognisance of the need for a good mix
of skills, experience and competencies required in the
various fields of expertise, for effective management of the
group’s business.

The board meets at least once every quarier. it has four

standing committees, as discussed below, which also meet
at least four times a year.

Audit Committee
The audit committee plays the key role of reinforcing best
practice in corporate governance particularly in the areas of

internal controls and risk management.

Its main duties are;

* 10 ensure that the systems of internal control are
soundly conceived and effectively administered and
seek assurance that effective control systems are in
place and regularly monitored;

= 1o define responsibilities of the internal control function;

* {0 review financial statements and interim results;
+ discussing the mandate and reviewing the findings of
internal and external auditors.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

This committee is respansible for appraising the
performance of senior management staff, including the
Chief Executive, continuous review and rationalisation of
human resources policies, and advising the Board on
matters relating 1o remuneration for senior management
and board members. It is also responsible for the
appointment of directors to the board.

Asset Disposals Committee

The committee is responsible for the disposal of the
Group’s significant non-operating assets. It is charged with
ensuring that the process of disposal is fair, professional
and efficient as instructed by the board.

Executive Committee

The Managing Director chairs an East African Executive
management committee, which comprises the executive
directors and certain other senior executives. The
committee meets at feast once a month and its mandate is
to deal with operational issues, and to improve
communication and co-ordination through the various
companies in the group.

Planning and Control

There is a comprehansive management cycle system that
includes the long-term strategic plan, medium term
performance improvement plan, organisation and human
resource review and the budgets. The strategic plan gives
the group long-term direction while the performance plan
enables management to focus on key actions to achieve
our strategy. The budget or annual business plan is
approved by the Board in December each year and must
be consistent with the strategic and performance plan. At
avery board meeting, management accounts containing
actual versus budgeted results and revised forecasts for the
year are reviewed by the Board. These monthly
management accounts analyse and explain variances
against plan and report on key financial indicators.

There is a clearly defined organisational structure within
which individual responsibilities are identified in relation to
internal controls. The structure is complemented by
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policies, and management cperate the business in
compliance with these policies. The policies include
guidelines for authorisation and approval of revenue and
capital expenditure.

The group has defined procedures and controls, including
information systems controls, to ensure the reporting of
complete and accurate accounting information. These
cover systems for obtaining authority for major transactions
and for ensuring compliance with laws and regulations that
have significant financial implications. Procedures are also in
place to ensure that assets are subject to proper physical
controls and that the business remaing appropriately
structured to ensure adequate segregation of duties.

During the year, the group continued the implementation of
the requirements of the Sarbanes Oxley Act, a United
States statute and critical project that commenced in 2004.
Being part of Lafarge S.A. a company that is quoted on the
New York Stock Exchange, we are obliged to implement
the requirements of this Act. The key highlights of this
project are:

*  Documentation and flow-charting of business
processes and controls around these processes. This
stage deals with the process and design effectiveness

* Testing of the controls internally {by both the EA internal
audit as well as Lafarge audit teams) followed by
external testing by our external auditors. This stage
deals with operating effectiveness

e Overall internal controls assessment

The main benefits to be gained from this project include:

* Improving business processes efficiency through
implementation of common internal control standards
and sharing best practices.

* Increasing accountability of management with regard to
internal controls and improving the internal control
culture throughout the Group.

* Enhancing corporate governance principles and the
risk assessment and management process.

*  Providing a framewaork for continuous assessment and
improvement of the internal controls within the group.

We have also fully adopted International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) in line with the requirements of the
Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya. This
should enhance the readership and understanding of
published accounts for shareholders and other users.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We are committed to ensuring that our group operates with
the highest standards of professicnalism - pursuing our
strategy for sustainable profitable growth while showing
awareness of environmental and stakeholder issues. Our
vision on sustainable development is to be seen as a good
neighbour and an environmentally and sodially responsible
corporate entity. This includes ensuring that our business
respects the public interest at the local level. Our success in
quarry rehabilitation and our partnership on landscape
reforestation with WWF in East Africa has been publicly
acknowledged. Progress in this area is illustrated elsewhere
in this report. Social responsibility is another of our key
initiatives, which is not as well known. As an illustration we
have dedicated key management resources in each of our
units to community, safety and environmental issues.

This means that apart from iooking after our staff in terms
of paying competitive salaries and wages, as well as giving
them every opportunity to contribute and develop their
talents in a conducive and challenging work environment,
and delivering an equitable return to our shareholders, we
make a defiberate effort to contribute towards building a
better world for communities around us in education, health
and in environmental protection, amangst others.

Safety

Our aim and commitment to Health & Safety is to ensure
that everyone who comes to our workplace ieaves without
an injury. We believe that exceillence in Health and Safety
(H&S) will contribute to our East Africa vision of being the
undisputed leader in cement production and marketing in
the region. Our guiding principles that:

+ all people working at our sites have a right to expect
safe and healthy working conditions

* all people working at our sites have the responsibility to
contribute to such conditions with responsibls

* behaviour for themselves and others affected by their
actions.

*  We regard H&S as core business values integrated into
the overall business performance

*  Every accident or case of il-health resulting from
employment is avoidable. All our operations must
continuously improve their H&S performance to achieve
sustainable accident-free status

*  Our H&S management main tools are near miss
analysis, risk assessments and continuous training.

* Al our operations must respect the local rules and
regulations in their management of all H&S matters.

It is the prime responsibility of every manager andg employee
at every level to ensure H&S of employees, contractors and
visitors under their responsibility.
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They must implement H&S policy and applicable
procedures.

In 2005, we moved further in realising our goal. Mombasa
Plant, one of our plants received two prestigious awards in
safety; Lafarge Best Safety Behaviour Improvement Initiative
and Africa’s Best Overall safety performance. Other plants
managed to achieve milestonas in safety as follows; Nairobi
Grinding Plant Athi River, Bamburi Special Products, and
Hima Cement each had five, two and one year records
respectively, without any lost time injuries (LTIs) to
employees. The overall frequency rate (number of LTls per
1,000,000 hrs workead) for the group is 1.16. Lafarge
targets to achieve less than 3.

During the year, we continued with our road safety
campaign with the aim of eliminating fatalities involving
vehicles of our transporters and suppliers. It is regretted
that 5 people involved in transport operation of raw
materials or cement, died on the roads in Kenya and
Uganda. This howaver, is a reduction from the 6 fatalities
we had on road transport in 2004. We have developed a
road map to be able to focus broadly and effectively on the
road safety. Upon implementing measuras targeting the
transporters in terms of management and trucks
maintenance, we shifted to drivers focusing on behaviour
change. A number of drivers underwent defensive driving
training to reinforce their skills in observation and
anticipation in order to avoid road accidents. We will
continue to train more drivers this year. Our East Africa
Road safety committee has been constituted in order o
provide a forum for uniform application of the driving policy.

Analysis of near misses will remain a priority in order to
drive safety culture in our sites. We will also increase our
effort towards improving safety relating to our transporters.

COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT
PROGRAMMES

KENYA

As mentioned above we direct our social and community
activities to education, health, envimnment and safety. We
feel that for appropriate impact and efficiency, focus on
major projects on a long-term basis is the best route. Cur
strategy is therefore to provide continuing support to long-
term sustainable projects and is guided by the company's
performance.

Education

One of our initiatives in the education sector falls under our

Bursary Scheme set up in 1998 to assist undergraduate
students in our National Universities. The bursary supports
students from the areas in which we operate who have
been offered places in our National Universities. This
programme began with support of two students but has
since grown to twanty one. Our focus on education saw us
continue to support 2 number of students in various
schools in Kenya by paying their school fees.

In addition, we have an internship program, in which we
provide field attachment opportunities within our
organisation to better prepare the students for the work
environment. In tandem with this we have recently
launched an apprenticeship-training scheme in which we
will sponsor technical apprentices to the National
Polytachnics to enable them enhance their knowledge and
skills relevant to the current and future needs of our plant
operations and the country. We expect that within the next
four years, we will have supported twenty students through
this programme. In addition, in 2005, through our
subsidiary Lafarge Eco Systems {LES) on site academic
programs have been developed with leading National and
International Universities. Thirteen Kenyan students enjoyed
attachment during 2005. Planning for 2006 concluded the
offering of an undergraduate course in rehabilitation to
Princeton and Cranfield Universities and the University of
Nairobi while Yale University students are expected in 2006.
LES also plays a key role in furthering the education of
Kenyans; in 2005 two scientists associated with us
obtained placement in Harvard and Yale Universities on
scholarships for Phd and Masters Degree programmes that
will include field research with LES.

Health

Our commitment to the community in the area of health is
exemplified by our continued invalvement in both HiV/Aids
and Malaria control programmes.

in the workplace our initiatives towards enhancing
awdreness saw a launch of a group of Peer Educators in
April 2005. Various activities were planned and executed
leading up to the marking of the World Aids Day. These
were a week of awareness at our Nairobi Grinding Plant in
Athi River, provision of employee access to a Voluntary
Counselling and Testing Centre and donation of foodstuffs
1o a children’s home in Nairobi's Korogocho slum area
where support is also given to children affected by
HIV/AIDS.

Female employees and the female spouses of our
employees subsidiary Lafarge in Mombasa attended a HIV
and health seminar organized and conducted free of charge
at the Haller Park pavilion on the 25th and 26th August
2005.

CMA-LIBRARY |
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The Company continues to provide Anti Retroviral Therapy
for employees who are HIV positive and who require them.

Environment
a. Quarry rehabilitation

The most significant achievement of our Corporate Sccial
Responsibility (CSR) activities is quasry rehabilitation. We
continued our planting of pionaer trees in ali the areas of
quarry available — a necessary first step towards recreating
the soil conditions necessary for tropical forests to become
established. In older areas we continued with enrichment
planting in order to introduce valuable tree species, species
that attract birds and insects as well as other animals, and
species that promaote the repair of ecosystem functions like
pollination and soil development. These forests are located
in Haller Park and the Forest Trails and we aiways
encourage staff, shareholders and the gensral public to get
involved in creating forests. During World Environment Day
2005 (June 5th) over 1,000 seediings were planted by staff
and friends.

During the year we adopted the Lafarge Best Practice for
rehabiiitation development and initiated a project on
rehabilitation master planning. Masterplans are the
blueprints that describe the rehabilitation of all our quarries
in East Africa. These plans will be completed in 2006 and
will be a key communication tool for our shareholders and
all cur visitors as well as government officials. Our baseiine
studies revealed that restoration at the Kenyan coast has
successfully restored biodiversity in most sites.

We met the environmental audit targets and assisted as
part of the team carrying out the environmental impact
assessment in Hima's proposed quarry at Dura. The
specific involvernent of the team from Lafarge Eco Systems
included coordinating the biodiversity surveys, consultations
with stakeholders, development of the rehabilitation plan
and assisting in the compilation of the final report which has
since been submitted to the Ugandan environmental
authorities for consideration.

b. Haller Park

Our showcase Haller Park and sister Park Forest Trails
remain top visitor attractions in Mombasa. Together they
attracted 130,000 visitors in the year, one third of whom
were Kenvan scheool children, the remainder Kenyan and
international tourists. The benefit to cur neighbours and
partners include their use for various important fund raising
events for the less privileged. During the year we focussed
on improving our customer services by introducing new
uniforms, working on the information content of cur guided
tours, and initiated evening talks, films and occasicnal night
time guided tours. We also re-opened the Whistling Fing

Restaurant and introduced wildlife films in the reception
area. Major developments were underway during the year
with creation of new exhibits to house hippos, dredging of
ponds to improve water quality and improvements to visitor
facilities in a number of places. Most visibie was the
introduction of new colourful signage at our entrances. To
attract more visitors to our beautiful but less well known
Forest Trails, we reconstructed the deck across a stunning
pond at Sunset Tarrace bar and built an innovative new
playground at the site.

Lafarge Eco systems opened Halier Pask to allow free entry
for the Mombasa community on the World Environment
day. A total of 1587 people visited the park as a result and
were happy to view our rehabilitation show case. Two
schools from Kwaie District which are part of the Green
Schools Project were sponsored to come for the occasion.

Halier Pask has the unigue distinction of being the home of
Owen and Mzee a hippo and tortoise respectively, whose
behaviour has been made into a best selling book. Funds
raised from this book have been used to improve Haller
Park’s educational facilities and to create a new exhibit for
Owen and Mzee that will further celebrate the success in
restoration at the Park.

c. The Green Schools Project

The Green Schools project launched in 2003 has continued
to make good progress. This project focuses on providing
ciean water and tree seedlings for planting to schools with
the aim of eventually creating a sustainable source of
drinking water and firewood. We provide a water tank
design concept, and then train people in the local
community on how to construct it before we offer them
cemeant for construction. We then provide 5,000 tree
seedlings to each scheol. The goal is to ensure that each
"Green School" pupil will plant trees that will foster growth
of forests and sustenance of firewood for cooking. The
tanks will collect rainwater, which wil provide access to
clean drinking water. The total numbers of tanks
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constructed in 2005 were 53 bringing the total number of
tanks built to 107 since the project inception. The tanks
were constructed in 27 schools and one institution for
orphans. To date we have planted over 123,566 tree
seedlings in the selected green schoals in Kwale, Kilifi,
Mombasa, Machakos, Mwingi, Kajiado, Rarieda and
Marakwet. In recognition of the efforts in this respect the
company was awarded a special award at the Total Eco
Challenge Awards in September 2005.

Lafarge Fco Systems conducted a one day seminar for
thirty primary school teachers in Kwale district. Some of
these teachers were from the schools already in
participating in the Green schoals project. This seminar was
ta help themn understand how to start a tree nursery, care
for the trees and to raise awareness on the impartance of
environmental conservation.

The Floringi Project

in 2005, Bamburi Special Products contributed material in
the form of concrete paving blocks 1o a slum upgrading
project in the Mombasa area of Floringi. Floringi is situated
within the administrative boundary of Island Division,

Mombasa District, and measures approximately 0.5 km?
bordering Bondeni area to the north. It is & cosmepolitan

community with a population of 4,000 peopls; 20% of
whom are elderly and 80% of whom are the youth. The
village has 150 houses. During rainy seasons however,
flooding exacerbated by a poor drainage system, led to a
deplorable situation in the area. The project which sought to
improve proper sanitation and drainage in this flood prone
area was undertaken in collaboration with an NGO known
as Citizen's Forum Trust, various private sector donors and
the UUNEP. The project was successfully launched in
February 2005.

Bamburi - WWF/EARPQ Partnership
Shimba Hills

Bamburi in Cooperation with Kenya Wildlife Service,
Forestry Department, National Museums of Kenya and local
Communitias are involved in this project that aims at
prometing sustainable community livelinood through Forest
Landscape Restoration and Public Awareness.

For WWF-EARPO East African Coastal Forests is one of
their focal programmes, extending from Kenya to
Mozambigue. While we were implementing our pilot phase,
WWF managed to secure funding from ather organizations
to continue, expand and upgrade the programme in and
around Shimba Hills, as part of the larger E.A.Coastal
Forest Programme, This expansion started end 2005;
WWF-EARPQ have recruited officers at various levels, and
implementation is about o take off.

Shimba Hills National Reserve is a 250 km? national park
situated approximately 40 km south of Mombasa, with
ecosystems of moist coastal forests, high plant diversity
and a high raie of endemism. It is part of WWF's Eastern
Africa Coastal Forest Eco region, one of the world’s 25
biodiversity hotspots. For Bamburi, Shimba Hills is the main
biodiversity reservair for its ecological guarry rehabilitation.

The project aims to contrbute to the conservation of the
Shimba Hills ecosystem through involvement of the locat
communities. We assist reserve-adjacent communities to
establish tree plantations on their land along the reserve
boundary to create a buffer zone between the reserve and
agricultural land; 43,000 seedlings have been planted since
2005. The buffar-zone plantations are established 1o reduce
crop raiding by wildlife from the reserve, mainly elephants,
as well as to create revenue that is realisable at a later date
from the sale of poles and timber.

At the same time the project supports sustainable livelincod
initiatives for the reserve-adjacent communitias in order 1o
reduce pressure onto the ecosystem from the poor
communities around the reserve. The project organises
training for the various activities and assists with
astablishing markets for the products. We have continued
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supporting the start up of income generating activities like
butterfty farming projects, community tree nurseries, and
traditional handicraft. Bee keeping and fruit trees are also
being considered, but those projects have not yet reached
implementation stage. During the year the tree nurseries
received a boost in terms of purchases from our Green
Schools Project.

Stakeholder workshops are carred out once a year to bring
together all the organisations involved in conservation-
related activities around the Shimba Hills National Reserve.
The one-day workshops encourage exchange of
information and coordination of activities between
government departments, NGOs, and community-based
organisations.

Together with WWF personnel Lafarge Eco Systems
planted trees in the Kaya Muhaka Forest in south coast on
the 10th of August 2005 which is a community managed
forest. A contribution of 500 Seedlings was made to this
event alongside employee involvement in the exercise.

WWF Eastern Africa Corporate Club

The WWF Eastern Africa Corporate Club was officially
launched in January 2004, starting off with 13 member
companies. Bamburi was one of the first members. It is a
membership programme developed under the umbrella of
WWF East Africa Programme Cffice (WWF/EARPQ) to
provide a platform for leading companies in East Africa to
promote sustainable development, exchange experiences
and contribute to regional corservation efforts.

The goal is to support national, regional and international
efforts in the promotion of sustainable development, poverty
alleviation and the maintenance of environmental integrity.

The Corporate Club has embarked on a common project of
all member companies, implemented under WWF/EARPOs
leadership: ‘Eastern Africa Forest Catchments Ecosystems
- Partnership for Restoration and Management’, focusing
initially on Mau Forest as a model site for other water
catchments forests in the country and the region,

The Mau Forest is one of the five main water catchments as
well as an important biodiversity area in Kenya. Currently
Mau Forest covers approx. 390,000 ha, but is severely
threatened by population pressure {the forest land is very
productive, and crop cultivation has encroached deeply into
former forest areas), and over exploitation (mostly timber
and wood fuel).

The goal of the Corporate Club's Mau Forest Project is to
protect Mau Forest, conserve it's valuable natural rescurces
and sustain the: environmental goods and services it
provides for the benefit of present and future generations.

The project is implemented through partnerships with
relevant organisations, institutions and local communities in
order to stop further destruction of the Mau Forest and
protect what remains of it. Destroyed and degraded areas
are rehabilitated to restore indigencus forests or to estabiish
tree plantations. The programme includes promoting
environmental awareness, and building capacity in local
communities and institutions. Forest-based, non-destructive
income-generating activities are facilitated for the local
communities, as well as on-farm tree planting.

Other Community Activities

We centinued with our post retranchment programme
which aims at providing training, counseling, and financial
support through a revolving fund to enable the staff start
income generating activities. We are currently carrying out a
study to enable us make the fund self sustaining and
hopefully enhance support and service to the businesses.
To date we have directly and indirectly supported the start-
up of 140 new businesses, which have created 562 jobs.
We have provided micro financing to 50 business start-ups
for ex-employees, a number of whorm are sub-contraciors
with companies within the Group.

Our staff feel privileged by virtue of the fact that they are
employed in a country where 50% of their fellow
countrymen live on an average of one dollar a day.
Consequently they have felt obliged to play a part in
supporting those who are less privileged through charity. In
this connection for every shilling contributed by a staff
member, the company matches with a similar amount. Qut
of 2005 contributions, we elected 1o pay school fees for
eight deserving students and support them till completion of
secondary school. The balance will go towards supporting
charities to be proposed by staff.

In response to the obvious need in various parts of Kenya
affected by famine, the company donated five million
shillirgs to the Famine Relief Fund through the Red Cross in
January of 2006 towards the alleviation of famine in the
country. This donation wag directed to both short term
initiatives: the purchasing of food, medicire, provision of
Clean water and as a long term solution part of the donation
would be used to construct a borehote. We will continue to
be involved in community matters in the area within which

N
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we operate and work even harder to support sustainable
projects to complement the fight against poverty.

The Boabab Trust run by Rene Haller is supported by
Bamburi and Lafarge Eco Systems. The Boabab Trust
manages a demonstration farm for local farmers providing
training on sustainable farming techniques for the local
conditions. The Trust projects include marine and turtle
conservation and community water and foresting projects. It
also manages the Nguuni Nature Sanctuary on behalf of
Bamburi.

UGANDA

In Uganda, we continue to be actively involved in a number
of social initatives. The main focus of Hima Cement Limited
has been in the areas of education, health and sanitation,
shelter, and environment.

Education

Literacy and Education remain at the forefront of our
passions and therefore focus in terms of programs for
support. We have continued the scholarship program for
the bright students and in 2005 have made it even bigger,
with more staff dependants eligible in order to encourage
our own children o excel. In 2005 we shall sponsor 7 new
students in addition to the existing ones. The Hima
Donations commitiee is in charge of monitoring these
students performance, with continuously poor performers
being dropped off the scheme.

We also chair the management committee for the Hima
Primary School and challenge and set performance
standards for the school management. This year the
primary schoal produced students eligible for the Hima
scholarship after many years of forfeiture because of poor
performance in the past. We also continue to provide
support through cost of living allowances for teachers and
stationery as well as accommodation for the teachers.

We have also introduced youth talks for the youth around
Hima. These are championed by the community relations
office. Topics that the youth feel are pertinent to them are
forwarded and then discussions held during the school
holidays. Such issues include health matiers and sexuality.
One of the interesting ones was a career guidance talk with
Hima employees from various disciplines sharing
experiences, Other speakears included the police and the
church in Hima.

Health

Our commitment to the community in the area of health is

exemplified by our continued involvement in both HIV/Aids
and Malaria control programs.

We launched our HIV/AIDS palicy in 2004. The key issues
addressed being free Voluntary Counseling and Testing
(VCT) for the community around Hima and free Anti
Retroviral Therapy (ART) for staff and dependants.

We had in total 695 people from around Hima attending the
VCT in the year 2005. In 2005 we took it a step further and
entered into partnership with the Government of Uganda,
our medical service providers 1AA and USAID to extend free
ART to the community around Hima as well. Administration
of the drugs commences in March 2006.

Our VCT is a government accredited facility, and this was
the basis on which we secured the partnership. Our
responsibility in the partnership is to administer the ART
through our medical service provider, as well as monitor the
patients by carrying out CD4 counts. In addition to this we
provide the logistics for the community outreach. |AA
provides the medication for opportunistic infections whereas
the GoU provides the ARV drugs, financed by the Global
Fund. USAID through an agent finances the personnel cost
for community outreach.

Hima is the first company in Uganda to embark on
provision of ART for the community.

To enhance our HIV/AIDS initiatives we conducted a KAP
(Knowledge, Attitudes and Practices) survey amongst our
staff, to give us an indication of where we are in these three
areas. The health committee headed by an Executive
committee is taking charge of mapping the way forward on
HIV/AIDS initiatives.

in recognition of the challenges Hima and her surroundings
have in terms of health, with the region particularly being
prone to cholera and malaria, we have continued the
community days which focus on sensitizing the population
on good health practices and also awareness of the
hazards around us. We had 4 such days, 1 per quarter in
the year. The main topics being on malaria, cholera,
HIV/AIDS and general hygiene and sanitation.

Sanitation

Based on a survey conducted by UNICEF in Kasese
district, sanitation remains a big issue with the ratio of
students per latrine being unacceptably high. Since 2003
we adopted this as one of our key focus points. In 2005 we
constructed 2 latrines in 2 schools in Kasese with 5
cubicles each, reducing the ratio of toilet per child from an
average of 1:40to 1:10.
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Environment
We continue to provide cement donations to needy causes

On the environmental front, we started a tree nursery four such as schools, churches, mosques, hospitals, children's
years ago. We continue to be actively involved in planting homes and other causes. i
trees around our plant, and providing trees to our

neighbouring communities. In 2003, we embarked on an We also continue to prepare the staff nearing retirement age
ambitious plan to plant 250,000 trees over two main rainy by imparting business skills and counseliing. This exercise
Seasons in our quarry, particularly the utilised portions, as starts from 50 years of age as the retirement age is 55

well as those unlikely to be used. To date we have planted years.

80,000 trees.

M Puchercos D Njoroge
Director Director

28 February 2006




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the 55th Annual General
Meeting of the Shareholders of Bamburi Cement Limited
will be held in Mombasa at Nyali Beach Hotel, on
Wednesday 16th May 2006 at 3.00 p.m. for the following
puUrposes:

1. To table the proxies and to note the presence of a
quorum.

2. To read the notice convening the mesting,

3. To receive the Chairman's statement, the Report of

the Directors, and the Audited Accounts for the year

ended 31 December 2005.

4, To ratify the payment of the first and second interim
dividends of 36% and 70% per ordinary share paid
in April and September 2005.

5, To approve Directors' fees for 2006.
6. To elect directors:

a) In accordance with the Company's Articleg of

Association Messrs. J-C Hillenmeyer an

D. Njoroge retire by rotation and being
offer themselves for re-election. /

ligible,

b} In accordance with Article 101 of thg Company's
Articles of Association, Mrs. S. M’ KMbijjewe who
was appointed an additional Diregtor on 8th June
2005, retires from office, and bejhg eligible, offers
herself for re-election.

o

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company's
Articles of Association, Mr M Puchercos who wa
appointed as Managing Director on 1st
September 2005, retires ftbm office, and being
eligible, offers himself for fe-election.

=

in accordance with Artigle 101 of the Compgny's
Articles of Association/ Mrs R K Lumbasyo fwho
was appointed as a Qirector on 28th Febrfary
2006, retires from office, and being eligible, offers
herself for re-electigh.

a3

In accordance with Article 101 of the Gompany’s
Articles of Assocjation, Mr A Sigei whp was
appointed as a Pirector on 1st March 2006,
retires from offiée, and being eligiblg] offers
himseif for re-glection.

f) Special notige having been given pursuant 1o
Sections 142 and 186(5} of the Gompanies Act
{Cap 486), fo propose the ollowing resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

/

“That Mr Richard Kemoli, who attained the age of 70
years on 3 December 2005, be re-elected a
director of the Comipany.”

7. To note' that Deloitte and Touche continue in office

0 transact any other buginess of the Company of
which due notice has been received.

By order of the Board

Ms.M W Nderitu
Secretary
7th April 2006

A member enfltled to attend and vote at the above meeting
is entitled to Appoint a proxy, who need not be a member
of the Company, to attend and vote in his stead. Proxy
forms mugt be lodged at the registered office of the
Comparny, PO. Box 10921, 00100 Nairobi not less than 48
hours Hefore the time of the meeting. A proxy form is
proviged with this report.

N DTS
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sale of cement and cement related products. The Group also
owns and manages a world class nature and environmental park developed from rehabilitated quarries.

RESULTS Shs'million
Group profit before tax 3,147
Tax (992}
Group profit after tax 2,155
Minority interest (151
Net profit for the year transferred to revenue reserve 2,004
DIVIDENDS

During the year interim dividends of Shs 1,923 million (2004 — Shs 2,223 million) were declared. The directors do not
recommend a final dividend and the interim dividends will be ratified at the next Annual General Meeting to be held on
16 May 2006.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk and the effects of changes in debt and
equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial
performance within the options available in Kenya and Uganda to hedge against such risks.

The Group has effective policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
DIRECTORS

The present board of directors is shown on pages 6 and 7. The following changes took place during the year:

Mr D Tresarrieu resigned as Managing Director an 31 August 2005 and Mr M Puchercos was appointed in his place on
1 September 2005. Mr Mogere retired on 28 February 2006 and R Lumbasyo was appointed in his place on the same
date. Mrs. S M'Mbijjewe was appointed as a non executive director on 8 June 2005.

AUDITORS

Deloitie & Touche, having expressed their willingness, will continue in office in accordance with Section 159 (2) of the
Companies Act.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Secretary

Nairobi

28 February 2006




STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Companies Act requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the group and of the company as at the end of the financial year and of the group’s profit or

loss for that period. It requires the directors to ensure that the group keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with -
reasonacle accuracy, the financial position of the group. They are also responsible for safeguarding the group’s assets.

The directors accept responsibility for the annuai financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate
accounting policies supported by reasonatle and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act. The directors are of the opinion that the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the group and of the company and of the
group’s profit. The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon
in the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the group companies will not remain going concerns for
at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

M Puchercos D Njoroge
Director Director

28 February 2006




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF BAMBURI CEMENT LIMITED

We nave audited the financial statements on pages 27 to 54 for the year ended 31 December 2005 and have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
As described on page 25, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on those financial statements based on our audit.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internaticnal Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free
of material misstaternent. An audit inciudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by the directors, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion
[n our opinion:

{a) proper books of account have been kept by the company and the company’s balance sheet is in
agreement therewitn;

(b} the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the group
at 31 December 2005 and of the group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Kenya Companies Act,

De}af&cg foncle

28 February 2006




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

2005 2004
Notes Shs’million Shs’million
Sales 15,045 12,284
Other operating income 4 97 143
15,142 12,427
Change in inventory of finished goods 374 {24)
Raw materials and consumables used 5 {8,250) (6,238)
Staff costs 3] {1,463 {1,241
Depreciation and amortisation (697) (770)
Restructuring costs (7 (31)
Cther operating costs 7 (1,769 (1,405)
Operating profit 3 3,330 2,718
Finance (costs)/income - net 8 (183 68
Profit before tax 3,147 2,786
Tax 9 {992 {885)
Nat profit for the year 2,155 1,901
Attributable to:
Equity holders of Bamburi Cement Limited 2,004 1,718
Minority interest 151 183
2,155 1,901
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 10 Shs 5.52 Shs 4,73
Dividends:
First interim dividend - paid in the year iR 653 408
Second interim dividend - paid in the year 11 1,270 1,815
1,923 2,223




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005

2005 2004
Notes Shs’million Shs’million
ASSETS
* Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 9,080 9,876
Operating lease rentals 13 9 "
Intangible assets 14 72 49
Capital work in progress 15 350 347
Investments in subsidiaries 16 1 1
Cther equity investments 17 1,803 734
Goodwill 18 217 217
11,532 11,235
Current assets
Inventories 19 2,027 1,879
Trade and other receivables 20 853 856
Cash and cash equivalents 21 820 841
3,800 3,576
TOTAL ASSETS 15,332 14,811
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 22 1,815 1,815
Capital redemption reserve 2 2
Revaluation reserve 23 2,821 3,107
Fair value reserve 1,457 388
Retained earnings 4,922 4,368
Translation reserve (338) 183
Shareholders’ funds 10,679 3,863
Minority interest 602 622
Total equity 11,281 10,485
®  Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax 24 1,932 2,134
Provision for liabllities and charges 25 298 214
2,230 2,348
. Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 26 1,232 1,428
Tax payable 108 161
Borrowings ’ 27 417 209
Provision for liabilities and charges 25 44 28
Linclaimed dividends 20 152
1,821 1,978
15,332 14,811

The financial statements on pagas 27 o 54 were approved by the board of directors on 28 February 2006 and were signed
on its behalf by:

M Puchercos D Njoroge
Director Director



COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005

2005 2004
Notes Shs’million Shs’million
ASSETS .
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 6,721 7,195
Operating lease rentals 13 1 1
Intangible assets 14 63 28
Capital work in progress 15 182 254
Investments in subsidiaries 16 968 968
Other equity investments 17 1,803 734
9,738 9,181
Current assets
Inventories 19 1,403 1,467
Trade and other receivables 20 1,037 923
Cash and cash equivalents 21 680 638
3,120 3,028
TOTAL ASSETS 12,858 12,209
EQUITY AND RESERVES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 22 1,815 1,815
Capital redemption reserve 2 2
Revaluation reserve 23 2,417 2,685
Fair value reserve 1,457 388
Retained earnings 4,307 4176
Shareholders’ funds 9,998 9,066 -
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax 24 1,402 1,545 .
Provision for liabilities and charges 25 296 212
1,698 1,757
Current liabilities
Trade and other pavabies 26 1,008 1,073
Tax payable 94 133
Provision for liabilities and charges 25 42 28
Unclaimed dividends 20 152
1,162 1,386
12,858 12,209

The financial staternents on pages 27 to 54 were approved by the board of directors on 28 February 2006 and were signed
on its behalf by:

9 M Puchercos D Njoroge
Director Director




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

au) 01 Aurdwos Aeipisgns ubiguo) 8Ly JO slosse |

58U aU) 10 uoIsiBAU0D ol Bu

‘AousLng Bupodal
e s8550| PuUe SUeB uoneisues) uc Uolisod aARginLUINg sut SIUBSaICal SAI9SE) UONBISURL BY] .

‘SISP|CLSIBYS BUL O SPUSPIAIP JO JusWwlied Jaye anaB aU1 AQ pAUIBIR) Si0.d pelanuINaoe Juaseidal sBuiies paukley .

“S1ED 180US S0UR[Ra SU] 1B Salinba ay) Jo senen

193/BW B} L0 pased enjen e 0l 1500 WOl saIeys ANNDa Ul SIUBLLISBAUY JO HBWS1Esel ey BuisLE SEZIep 10 SBSNAINS SAJBINUING SY) Slussaldes SAIBSSI aN@eA I Syl »
‘SIABINQLASID-UOL S8 SBSNICINS LIOREMNEAS) 81 “aludinba pue ueid ‘Apedid JO SUORBNEAS Loy Buisyue SNICUNS SAIBINWLNGS 10U 8L} $IUSSAIGR) SAIBSS) udlienersd 8YL e

‘saleys souaaald Jo Lopdepal 10} apise 188 spuny spussoidel onesal uonduispal Erdeo sy e

mojeq pauedke ame Alnba uy sebueyo Jo JUSLUSIRIS B LY PEPNIDU! SIUNCODE SAISSa) 8L

1:r A% go9 6L9°0) {ges) - AR A 128'e g SIE'L GO0Z Jequisseq 1o W
{0002 g (£26'1) - - feze') - - - - paleinep GOOZ 40) Wuslul -
SpUBDIMGg
(ee€) (8g) (6+2) (12s} 2iz - - - - (ssop/ueb uoneisueIL
GG1'2 £=18 $00°2 - - Yo0'a - - - - Jeak sy 10y WoId 1N
690°L - 690°) - BAG' L - - - spuelLsaay Ainks ue ueh snjes ey
- - - - ) - g - - Auadoud Jo [esoasin uo pes|esl
snjdlins UcienEaas uo xel pallajed
[+ ce - - - - Ge -, - slesse palredll Uo Xel peus)a(]
(oz1) - {0zt - - - - oz1) - - Auadoud jo esodsip
uo BaSIESl SNICUNS UoNEeneAsy
- - - - foa) 09 - - uoneosidep sS80xe Uc el palsied
- - - - - /92 (492) - - uonelosldep sso0x8 JO Jajsuel)
g0l cco £98°6 gl - 29C'% 880 201'e C SLg'tL 5002 Alenuepr | 1y
agr'ol (A £98'6 o8l - 898y g8t 018 Z Gig'l $00Z Jequusneq LE IV
(gge'e) {Goh) €22'd - - ieze'e) - - - - DAIEDOR F(0Z 10} WIS -
(eso) - {es9) - {£59) - - - - - PaIBosp £00¢ /O |eul) -
SpUBDIAKG
LO6°L €81 8LLL - - 8LL ) - - - - fead oy) 10y Woud 1eN
{os2) {os2) - - - 0se) - - - sjusLUIsoaul Anba UG ssO} anfeA 1B
8re 88 652 lee - ) - - - - wet/sso) uone|sueil
- - - - - 1) - el - - Auadoud o jesodsip uo
pasweal SNIAINS UCHENEAS) UO Xe) palielsg
- - - - - kAl - - Ausdoud Jo jBSCASIP U0 PSS!l sNICNS Uolenersy
- - - - as) - - UONEI00ICEN SS80XS U Xe) paLsle]
- - - - - frlori - - UONEI00IC8D $S80XS JO ISJSURl|
2ZS° 4 GG FAT N {ar 1) £69 859'y 829 S8l #00Z AenUEr | Y
LW, SYS UOHIWSLS  UONIWL,SYS UCHIWLSUS UOIW,SYS  UOHMLSYS  UOiIWLSYS uol|jiu, sys
[ejoL 188481 unquieg  saesal spuspiag  sBuwres anesal wldes
Aoui JO SIapIoy UONEjSUBI|  pOSOdCld  PRUEISY  Bnea uoy uon aleys
el Aynbo 0} 1e4 -ENEASYH -duispay
S|gEINguUIlY  s|qenguny euden




COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Capitat Fair
Share  Redemption  Revaluation Value  Retained
capital reserve resenve reserve earmings Total

Shs'million Shs'million Shs'million  Shs'million  Shs'million Shs’million

At 1 January 2004 1,815 2 2,940 638 5080 10,475
Transfer of excess depreciation - - (208) - 208

Ceferrad tax on excess depreciation - - 62 - (62)
Revaluation surplus  realised on disposal

of property - (122) - 122 -
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus

realised on disposal of property - - 13 - (13) -
Fair value loss on eguity investments - - - (250) - (250)
Net profit for the vear - - - - 1,717 1,717
Dividends:

- final for 2004 declared - - - - {653) {653)
- interim for 2004 declared - - - - (2,223) (2,223
At 31 Decemier 2004 1,815 2 2,685 388 4,176 9,066
At 1 January 2005 1,815 2 2,685 388 4176 9,066
Transfer of excess depreciation - - (226) - 2286 -
Ceferred tax on excess depreciation - - 37 - {37}
Revaluation surplus realised on disposal

of property - - {120) - - (120)
Deferred tax on impaired assets - - 35 - - 35
Deferred tax on revaluation surpius

realised on disposal of property - - §] - (6) - -
Fair value gain on equity investments - - - 1,069 1,069
Net profit for the year - - - - 1,871 1,871
Dividends: .
- interim for 2005 declared - - - - (1,923  (1,923)
At 31 December 2005 1,815 2 2,417 1,457 4,307 9,998

The reserve accounts included in the statement of changes in equity are explained below:

* The capital redemption reserve reprasents funds set aside for redemption of preference shares,

» The revaluation reserve represents the net cumulative surplus arising from revaluations of property, plant and
equipment. The revaluation reserve is non-distributable.

* The fair value reserve represents the cumulative surpluses or deficits arising from restatement of investments in
equity shares from cost to fair value based on the market values of the equities at the balance sheet date.

* Retained earnings represent accumulated profits retained by the company after payment of dividends to the
shareholders.




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

2005 2004
Notes Shs’million Shs’million
+  OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 30 3,592 3,761
Interest received 16 18
Interest paid (35) (33)
Taxation paid (1,116) (848)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2,457 2,878
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment and expenditure
on capital work in progress 459 (397)
Purchase of intangitle assets 53 (10)
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments - 56
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and eguipment 86 203
Dividends received - 7
Net cash used in investing activities 426) (141}
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid to group shareholders (2,055) 12,738)
Dividends paid to minority interest (83) {165)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,138) (2,903)
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (107) (166)
MOVEMENT IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Balance at start of year 632 849
Decrease in the year (107) {(166)
Exchange adiustment (22) (51
Balance at end of year 21 503 632

CMA-LIBRARY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES ;

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements remain unchanged from the pravious years
except as stated below:

Adoption of new and revised international financial reporting standards
In 2005 saveral new and revised standards became effective for the first time and have been adoptad by the group where

relevant to its operations. The adoption of these new and revised standards had no effect on the amounts reported for the
currant or prior years. This only resulted in changes in presentation and disclosure in the following areas:

. IAS 10 which has affected the presentation of proposed dividends

. IAS 16 which requires the disclosure of comparative figures for movements in property and eguipment

. IAS 24 which requires the disclosure of the compensation for key managerment personna

. IFRS 3 which reguires the discontinuation of amortisation of goodwill, elimination of the carrying amount of the

related accumulated amortisation with a corresponding decrease in goodwill and subsequently testing the
goodwil for impairment in accordance with IAS 36.

At the date of approval of these financial statements IFRS 6 (Exploralion for and Evaluation of Mineral Assets) and IFRS 7
(Financial instruments Disclosures) were in issue but not yet effective. The adoption of these Standards, when effective, wil
have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain
property, plant and eguipment, and the carrying of available-for-sale investments at fair values.

Consolidation

Subsidiary undertakings, which are those companies in which the parent company, directly or indirectly, has an interest of
more than one half of the voting rights or otherwise has power to exercise contral over the operations, are consolidated.
Subsidiaries are consclidated from the date on which effective control is transferred to the Group and consolidation ceases
from the date of disposal. Al inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions betwaen group -
cormpanies are aliminated, losses are also eliminated uniess cost cannot be recovered. Wheare necessary, accounting

policies for subsidiaries have been changed to achieve consistency with the policies adopted by the parent company.

Tne income statements of subsidiaries are translated at average exchange rates for the year and the balance sheets at the
year end rates. The resulting differences arising from translation are dealt with in the translation reserve in the consolidated
statement of changes in eouity.

A listing of the subsidiaries in the group is provided in Note 18.

Revenue recognition

Sales are recognised upon delivery of products to customers and performance of services, and are stated net of VAT and
discounts, and after sliminating sales within the Group.

Imterest income is recognised as it accrues, unless its collectibility is in doubt. Dividends receivable are recognised as
income in the period in which they ars declared.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during tha year are converted intc Kenya Shilings at rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Assets and fiabllities at the balance shoet date which are expressed in foreign currencies are translated into Kenya Shilings
at ratas ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting differences from conversion and transiation are dealt with in the
income staternent in the year in which they arise.

Investments

The company has classified its investrments into available-for-sale investments and originated loans. Management
determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of purchase and re-evaluates such designations cn a
regular basis as follows:

i) Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, but which may be scld in response to needs for
liquidity or changes in interest rates, are classified as available-for-sale. These investments are included in non-
currant assets unlass management has tha express intention of holding tha investment for lass than 12 months

from the balance sheet date or unless thay will nged tc be scld to raise operating capital.

{iiy Non-equity investments purchased in the primary market {i.e. directly from the issuers) are classified as originated
loans.

All purchases and salgs of investments arg initially recognised at cost on tha trade date, which is the date a
company within the group commits to purchase or sell the assat. Cost of purchase includes transaction costs.

Available-for-sale investments are subsequently carried at fair value, whilst originated loans are carried at
amortised cost using the effective yield method.

Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale investments are dealt with
in a separate reserve in the statermnent of changes in equity. On disposal, the entire realised gain or [oss is
recognised in the income statament.

Property, plant and equipment

Al property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Freehold land, buildings, plant and machinery arg
subsaquently restated to revalued amounts, based on valuations by indepandent external valuars, less subseguent
depreciation. The valuations are carried out approximately once every five years. Al cther property, plant and eguiprment
are stated at historical cost less depreciation.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation are credited to a revaluation reserve. Decreasas that offset previous
increases of the same asset are charged against the related revaluation reserve; all cther decreases are charged to the
income statemant. Each year the difference batween depreciation based on the revaiued carrying amount of an asset (the
depraciation charged to the incoma staternent) and depreciation hased on the asset’s original cost i ransferred from the
revaluation reserve 1o retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line hasis to write down the cost of each item of property plant and equipment, or
the revalued amount, to its residual value over its expected useful life as follows:

Buildings, plant and machinery 19 - 20 years
Equipment and mabile plant 3 - 10 years

Freehold lard is not depraciated as it is deemed to have an infinite life.

Where the carrying amount of an assal is greater than its estimated recoverabla amount, it is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment {Continued)

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amount and
are taken into account in determining operating profii. Upon disposal of revalued assets, amounts carried in the revaluation
reserve in relation to those assets are transferred to retained earnings,

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and tha ret amount reported in the balance shest when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off tha recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the fiability simultanecusly

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group or the soripany as the lesses. Al other leases are classified as operating leases,

Rentals payabie under operating leases are amaortised on the straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease,
Coodwill

Goadwill arising on consolida, 1 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of
the net assets of the acquired subsidiary as ai the date of acquisition. Goodwilf is intially recognised as an assst at cost
and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairmant testing, geodwill is allocated to the cash generating units expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Cash generating units 1o which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment
annually. If the recoverabia amoeunt of the cagh generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocatad to reduce the carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the unit. An impairment joss recognised for -
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Inventories

Inventories of consumabies and spare parts are stated at cost less provision for obsolste and slow maoving items. Al other
inventories are stated at the lower of cost and nat realisable value. Cost includes direct cost and appropriate overheads
and is determined on the fist-in first-out method. Net realisable value reprasents the estimated seling price lass all
estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Trade receivables

irecoverable,
Employee entitiements

Employee entitements to long service awards ars recognised when they accrue 1o employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for long-service awards as a result of services rendered by employess up to the balance sheot date.

The estimated monetary liability for emiployess’ accrued leave entitlerments at the balance sheet date is recognised as an
expense accrual,




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conminuep)

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation
income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax payable and the deferred taxation.

Curent taxation is provided on the basis of the results for the year, as shown in the financial statements, adjusted in
accordance with tax legislation,

Deferred taxation is provided using the liabiity method for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabiities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes. Currently enacted tax rates are used fo determine
deferred taxation.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax credits can be utilised.

Retirement benefits obligations

The group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for eligible non-unionisabie employees. The scheme is
administered by an independent investment management company and is funded by contributions from both the company
and employees. The Group also makes contribution to the statutory defined contribution schemes in the two countries
where operations are based.

Unicnisable staff who retire on attaining the age of 55 years or are declared redundant are eligible for a service gratuity
nased on each employee’s length of service with the group, as provided for in the trade union agreernent.

The group’s obligations to the staff retirement berefits schemes are charged to the income statement as they fall due or in
the case of service gratuity as they accrue to each employee.

Restructuring provisions

Restructuring provisions mainly comprise employee termination payments and are recognised in the period in which the
company becormes legally or constructively committed to payment. Empioyee termination benefits are recognised only after
elther an agreement is in place with the appropriate employee representatives specifying the terms of reaundancy and
numbers of employees affected, or after individual emplovees have been advised of the specific terms. Costs related to the
ongoing activities of the company are not provided for in advance.

Dividends

Dividends payable on ordinary shares are chargéd to retained earnings in the period in which they are declared. Divigends
receivable are recognised to income upon notification of declaration of the dividends of investee companies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conrnuen

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies, management has made estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and fiabilitiss within the next financial vear. Estimates and judgements are continuaily
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are pelieved
to be reascnable under the circumstances. The key areas of judgement in applying the group’s accounting policy are dealt
with Delow:

Impairment losses

At each balance shaet date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not
possitle to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the assat belongs.

Any impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately. Where ar impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. A raversal of an impairment
loss, other than that arising from goodwiil, is recognised as income immediately.

Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures nave been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the current year,

2  SEGMENT INFORMATION

The group is organised on a regional basis Into two main geographicai segments:

. Kenya
. Uganda

Both geographical segments are mainly involved in cement marufacturing and selling. Hence the primary reponting format
below is the only one presented.

Year ended 31 December 2005
All figures in million of Kenya Shillings

Kenya Uganda Group
Revenues 9,436 5,609 15,045
Operating profit 2,596 734 3,330
Segment assets 11,700 3,415 15,115
Non-segment assets 217
Total assets 15,332
Segment liabilities 2,864 1,167 4,031
Non-segment liabilities 20

Total liabilities 4,051
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' 2 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2004
All figures in millions of Kenya Shillings

Kenya Uganda Group
Revenues 7,772 4,512 12,284
Operating profit 1,807 a11 2,718
Segment assets 11,193 3,401 14,594
Non-segment assets 217
Total assets 14811
Segment liabilties 3,169 1,005 4174
Non-segment liabilities 152
Total liabilities 4326

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories, receivables and operating
cash, and mainly exclude irnvestments. Segment liabilities comprise operating liabiiities and exclude items such as
dividends payable and certain corporate borrowings.

Sales revenue is based on the country in which the production facllity is located. Total assets are shown by the
geographical area in which the assets are located.

GROUP
2005 2004
Shs'million Shs’million
3 OPERATING PROFIT
The operaling proft is arrived at after charging :
Staff costs (Note 6) 1,463 1,241
Depreciation and amortisation 697 770
Directors’ emoluments:
- Fees 6 6]
- Other emoluments 88 74
Auditors’ remuneration 8 7
4 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Profit on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipmeant 27 66
Profit on Sale of equity Investments - 27
Other miscellanous income 70 50
97 143
5 COST OF RAW MATERIALS AND CONSUMABLES
- Raw materials and packaging 5,074 3,601
Fuel costs 1,431 1,317
Repairs and maintenance 816 559
Electricity 929 761

3¢
8,250 6,238
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GROUP
2005 2004
Shs’miilion Shs’million
6 STAFF COSTS
The following items are included within staff costs:
Salaries and wages 1,000 875
Staff welfare costs 331 264
Retirement benefits costs 132 102
1,463 1,241
7 OTHER OPERATING COSTS
Administrative costs 728 574
Distribution costs 612 453
Professional fees 308 277
Cther costs 120 101

1,769 1,405

8 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME - net

Interest income 16 18
Dividend income 28 46
Bank charges 40) (30)
Net foreign exchange {losses)/gains {152) 87
Interest expense {35) {53)
{183) 68
9 TAX
Current tax 1,034 970
Overseas tax charged on dividends 29 &8
Net tax charge 1,063 1,028
Deferred tax cradit {73) {136)
Underprovision/(overprovision) of deferred tax in prior years 2 {7)
Net deferred tax credit {71) (143)

Tax charge 992 885
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9 TAX (CONTINUED)

The tax on the group profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax rate as shown
in the reconciliation below:

GROUP
2005 2004
Shs’million Shs’million
Profit before tax 3,147 2,786
Tax calculated at the domestic rates applicable of 30% 944 836
Tax effect of:
Income not subject to tax (15) (34)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 32 32
Underprovision/ (overprovision) cf deferred tax in prior years 2 {7
Overseas tax charged on dividends 29 58
Actual tax charge 992 885

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earmings per share is calculated by dividing the nat prafit attributable to equity holders of Bamburi Cement Limited by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as shown telow:

2005 2004

Shs’million Shs’million

Net profit attributable to equity holders (Shs million) 2,004 1,718
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (million) 363 363
Basic eamings per share (Shs) 5.62 4,73

There were no potentially cilutive shares outstanding at 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2004,

11 DIVIDENDS

Proposed dividends are accounted for as a separate component of equity until they have been ratified at an annual genera
meeting. During the year, two interim dividends amaounting to Shs 1,923 million were paid as follows:
. Shs 1.80 per share (2004: Shs 1,12} amounting to Shs 853 million paid on 11 April 2005 {2004: Shs 408 million)
. Shs 3.50 per share (2004: Shs 5) amounting to Shs 1,270 million paid on 19 September 2005
(2004: Shs 1,815 million)

Payment of dividends is subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% for non-resident shareholders and 5% for resident
shareholders.

40
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a) GROUP
Land and Plant Office
residential and  eguipment Mobile
buildings machinery and tools plant Total

she'milion  Shs'milion  Shs'milion  Shs'milion  Shs’millien
Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2004 1,423 10,072 528 984 13,007
Exchange adjustment* 77 375 19 27 498
Additions 2 g8 N 5 136
Disposals {132) {(10) (28) (78) (248)
Impairment (25) - - - (25)
At 31 December 2004 1,345 10,525 562 938 13,370

At 1 January 2005

1,345 10,525 562 938 13,370
Exchange adjustment” (76) (355) (24) {25) {b20)
Additions 0 364 68 10 442
Disposals (48) {12) (224) {(268) {(b52)
impairment - {187) - - (187)
At 31 December 2005 1,221 10,295 382 655 12,553
Depreciation .
1 January 2004 135 1,502 408 789 2,832
Exchange adjustment* 19 51 13 16 99
Charge for the year 35 535 52 58 680
On disposals (5) (14) {(41) (49) {109)
On impairment (8) - - - (8}
At 31 Decembesr 2004 176 2,074 430 814 3,494
1 January 2005 176 2,074 430 814 3,494
Exchange adjustment” 22) {71) (18) 20) {(129)
Charge for the year 3 541 50 48 68
On disposals (11) (4) (214} (264) {493)
Cn impairment - B7) - - 67)
At 31 Becamber 2005 174 2,473 250 5786 3,473
Net book value
At 31 December 2005 1,047 7,822 132 79 9,080

At 31 December 2004 1,169 §,451 132 124 0,876
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

*The exchange adjustment arises from the translation of the values relating to assets held by a subsidiary, Himcem Holdings
Limited.

Land and residential buildings include freshold land worth Shs 527 million (2004: Shs 540 million) located in Mombasa,
Kenya and limestone deposits worth Shs 121 million (2004: Shs 140 miliion) in Kasese, Uganda.

Plant and machinery, Office equipment and mobile plant with a cost Shs 662 milion (2004: Shs 1,036 million) were fully
depreciated as at 31 December 2005. The normal annual depreciation charge on these assets would have been Shs 148
mikion {2004: Shs 204 million).

The Group's land, buiidings, piant, and machinery were revalued on 1 January 2001. Land and buildings were valued by
independent valuers. The valuation of plant and machinery was carried cut by engineers and consultants of a related
company.

Land and buildings were revaiued cn the basis of depreciated reinstatement values. Plant and machinery were revalued on
a depreciated replacement cost basis.

b) COMPANY
Land and Plant Office
residential and equipment Moksile
buildings machinery and tools plant Totai

Shs'milion  Shs'milion  Shs'million  Shs'million  Shs'million

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2004 939 7.678 416 831 10,064
Additions - 59 7 - 66
Disposals (132 - (19 (74 (225)
At 31 December 2004 807 7,937 404 757 9,905
. At 1 January 2005 807 7,937 404 757 9,905
Additions - 125 42 - 167
Disposals (32) 4 209) 255) {500)
impairment - (187) - - {187)
At 31 December 2005 775 7,871 237 502 9,385

Depreciation

At 1 January 2004 26 1,230 324 723 2,303
Charge for the year 9 421 31 35 496
On disposals (5) - (19} (65} (89)
At 31 December 2004 : 30 1,651 336 693 2,710
At 1 January 2005 . - 30 1,651 336 693 2,710
Charge for the year 8 422 26 28 484
On disposals (3] (1) (208) (251) {463)
On impairment - ©7) - - 7
At 31 Dacember 2005 35 2,005 154 470 2,664

Net book value

At 31 December 2005 740 5,866 83 32 6,721
42

At 31 December 2004 77 6,286 68 64 7,195

CMA-LIRRARY!
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continuen;

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Plart and machinery, Office equipment and mobile plant with a cost of Shs 578 million (2004: Shs 972 million) were fully
depreciated as at 31 December 2005. The normal annual depraciation charge on these assets would have been Shs 123
million (2004: Shs 190 million).

If the property, plant and equipment were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
Shs'million Shs’million Shs’million  Shs'million
Cost 8,194 8,460 5,850 5,084
Accumulated depreciation (3,170) (3,075) (2,528) {2,549
Net book value 5,024 5,385 3,322 3,435

13 OPERATING LEASE RENTALS
GROUP COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
Shs'million Shs’million Shs'million Shs’million

Net carrying amount at 1 January 11 10 1 1
Exchange adjustment (2) 1 - -
Balance as at 31 December 9 11 1 1

The operating lease rentals relate te leasehold land, mainly raw materials quarries located in Mombasa and Nairobi in Kenya
and Kasese in Uganda.
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - COMPUTER SOFTWARE

GROUP COMPANY

Shs’million Shs’million
COST
At 1 January 2004 298 230
Additions 10 5
Disposal sy -
Exchange adjustment 12 -
At 31 December 2004 319 235
At 1 January 2005 319 235
Additions 53 52
Disposal (3) 2
Exchange adjustment (13) -
At 31 December 2005 356 285
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2004 221 184
Charge for the year 40 22
Disposal oy -
Exchange adjustment 10 -
At 31 December 2004 270 206
At 1 January 2005 270 206
Charge for the year 29 19
Disposal @ 3
Exchange adjustment (13) -
At 31 December 2005 284 222
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2005 72 63
At 31 December 2004 49 29
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15 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
GROUP COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
Shs’million Shs’'million  Shs’'million Shs'million

At 1 January 347 83 254 69
Additions 512 397 146 261
Transfers to plant and equipment {(495) (135} (218) (76}
Exchange adjustment (143 2 - -
At 31 December 350 347 182 254

Capital work in progress relates primarily to plant modifications in progress at year end. No depreciation has been charged
on these assets.

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries in the group ai 3 provided below:

GROUP COMPANY

Holding 2005 2004 2005 2004

% Shs'million Shs’million Shs’'million S$hs’million

Simparite Limited | 100 - - 53 53

Less: impairment provision - - (22} (22)

- - 31 31

Bamburi Special Products Ltd 100 - - 20 20

Bamburi Cement Ltd, Uganda 100 - - - -

Himcem Holdings Ltd,

Channel Islands 100 - - 911 911

Lafarge Eco Systems 100 - - 5 5

Diani Estate Ltd 100 1 1 1 1

Whistling Pines Ltd 100 - - - -
Kenya Cement Marketing Ltd 50 - - -
Portland Mines Ltd 50 - - -

1 1 968 968

Except where indicated above, the subsidiaries are incorporated in Kenya.

Himcem Holdings Limited has a 70% holding in its subsidiary, Hima Cerment Limited, a company incorporated in Uganda.
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17 OTHER EQUITY INVESTMENTS

These represent Available-For-Sale invesiments, which are restated to fair value annually at the close of businass on 31
Decamber. For investments traded in active markets, fair value is determined by reference to Stock Exchange gquoted bid
prices. For other invastments, falr value is determined by reference tg the current market far similar instruments or by
reference to the discountad cagh flows of the underlying net asseis.

The market value of the quoted equity shares at 31 December 2005 was Shs 1,803 milion (2004: Shs 734 million).

The mavement in available-for-sale investments is as follows:

GROUP AND COMPANY
2005 2004
Shs’million Shs’million
At 1 January 734 1,013
Fair value gair/(loss) 1,089 (250}
Disposal - @9
At 31 December 1,803 734

The fair value gains and losses on Avaiiable-For-Sale investments are dealt with In a separale fair value reserve in the
statement of changes in equity.

18 GOODWILL

GROUP
2005 2004
Shs'million Shs’'million
Cost
On acquisition of subsidiary 503 503
Ejiminaticn of accumulated amartisation (286) -
217 503
Amortisation
At 1 January 286 236
Charge for the year - 50
Eiimination of acoumulated amertisation (286) -
At 31 December - 286
Impairment
Irmpairment recognised in the year -
Net carrying value 217 217

The goodwiil arese from the acquisition of a subsidiary, Hima Cement Limited, in 1999. Previously the goodwill was
amortised over a period of 10 years. Fallowing the adoption of IFRS 3, the group discontinuad amortisation of the gocdwill
and tests the goodwili annually for impairment.
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19 INVENTORIES

GROUP COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
Shs’million  Shs’million  Shs’million Shs’million
Raw materals 198 285 186 260
Consumables and spare parts 1,107 1,068 815 762
Finished goods 487 141 257 118
Fuel and packaging matarials 233 384 144 327
Other 2 1 1 -
2,027 1,879 1,403 1,467

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

GROUP COMPANY

2005 2004 2005 2004

Shs’'million  Shs’million Shs'million  Shs’million

Trade receivables 542 453 316 293

Prepayments and deposits 42 62 24 43

Other receivables 153 141 104 107
Recsivables from related companias

{note 31) 116 200 593 480

853 856 1,037 923

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand 556 531 316 328
Short term bank deposits 364 310 364 310

820 841 680 638

The weighted average effactive interest rate earned on short-term hank deposits during the year was 2.5% {2004-2.5%),
The short-term deposits mature within three menths,

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprisa cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and investments in money market instruiments, net of bank overdrafts. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are
included in bormowings, under current lizbilities. The vear end cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

GROUP
2005 2004
Shs’million Shs’million
Deposits, bank balancas and cash {as above) 8520 841
Bank overdrafis fnote 27) (417} (93)
Short term borrowing (note 27) - (116}

503 632
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22 SHARE CAPITAL

GROUP AND COMPANY
2005 2004
Shs'million Shs’million

Authorised

366,600,000 ordinary shares of 5h 5 each 1,833 1,833

100,000 7% cumulative redeemable preference

shares of 8h 20 each 2 2
1,835 1,835

Issued and fully paid

382,050,275 ordinary shares of 3h 5 each : 1,815 1,815

23 REVALUATION RESERVE

The revaluation reserve represents surpiuses arising from revaluations of property, plant and equipment and itis

non-distributable.

24 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred taxes are calculated, in full, on all temporary differences under the liability method using a principal {ax rate of 30%
(2004: 30%). The make up of the deferred tax liabilities at the year end and the movement on the deferred tax account

during the year are presented beiow:

GROUP COMPANY

2005 2004 2005 2004
Shs'million Shs’million Shs’million Shs’million

Accelerated capital allowances on
Property, plant and eguipment 940 909 556 558
Exchange differences (13) (2) (12) (5)
Provisions (176) (138) (114 83)
Revaluation surpiuses 1,269 1,384 972 1,075
Other temporary differences 88) {21 - -
1,932 2,134 1,545

1,402
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24 DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
GROUP COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
Shs'million Shs’million  Shs'million Shs’million
The movement on the deferred
tax account during the vear is as

follows:

At 1 January 2,134 2,185 1,545 1,675
Income statement credit

far the year (71) (143) (143) (130)
Impairment of assets (35) - - _
Exchange differences {96) gz - -

A 1,932 2,134 1,402 1,545

t 31 December

In addition, daferred tax amounting to Shs 101 million in respect of the group (2004: Shs 89 millicn) and Shs 78 millicn in
respect of the company (2004 Shs 75 million) has bsen transferred within shareholders’ equity from retainad earnings to
revaluation reserves. This represents deferred tax on the difference between the actual depreciation charge on the property,
plant and equipment and the equivalent depreciation charge tased on the nistorical cost of the property, plant and
equipment and deferrad tax realised on disposal of property, plant and equipment.

25 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

GROUP
Restructuring
site restoration & Service Long service
litigation gratuity awards Total
Shs’milion  Shs'milion  Shs'million Shs’million
At start of year 28 201 13 242
Additional provisions 31 56 39 126
Utilised during the year (15) {5) (6) (26)
At end of year 44 252 46 342
Less: current portion (44) - - {44)
Nen current portion - 252 46 298
COMPANY
At starl of year 28 199 13 240
Additional provisions 29 58 39 124
Utilised during the year {(15) B) (6) {26)
At end of year 42 250 46 338
Less: Current portion 42) - - (42)

Non-current portion - 250 46 296

-
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

GROUP COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
Shs'million Shs’million Shs'million Shs’million
Trade payables 537 585 435 501
Accrued expenses 557 639 470 458
Other payables 138 137 65 a7
Amounts due to related companies
{Note 31) - 67 26 67
1,232 1,428 1,006 1,073
27 BORROWINGS
The borrowings are made up
as follows:
Bank overdraft M7 a3 - -
Short term bank loan - 116 - -
417 209 - -

The weighted average interast rates incurred on borowing facilities during the year were:

GROUP COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
- pank overdrafts — local currencies 16% 16% 12.75% -
_ bark loans - local currencies 8.5% 1% 8.5% -

In the opinion of directors the carrying amounts of the toans approximate to fair value. Fair values are pased on discounted
cash flows using a discount rate based upan the borrowing rates that directors expect would be available to the group at
the balance sheet date.

Borrowing facilities
The group had the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities as at 31 December:
GROUP COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004

She'million Shs’million Shs’million Shs’million
Floating rate

- expiring within one year 746 1,184 617 705
- expiring beyond one year - A1 - A1
746 1,235 617 746

These represent annual facilities that are subliect to review at various dates during the year 2005.

They consist of overdrafts, letters of credit and guarantees. Of the amounts shown abave Sh 482 million (2004: Sh 337
million) relates 1o guarantees given on pehalf of the company by its bankers to third parties in the normal course of
business.
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28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

GROUP COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
Shs’million  Shs’million Shs'million  Shs'million
Guarantess to group’s bankers
to secure staff borrowings 89 94 89 94

Bonds issued by group’s bankers
in favour of Kenya Revenue Authority 482 337 482 337

Bonds issued by group’s banker
in favour of suppliers 9 82 91 82

Tax demanded by Uganda Bevenus
Authority 106 295 - -

Through a demang notice dated 13 Jaruary 2005, The Uganda Revenue Alhority (URA) is demanding from Hima Cement
Limited, a total of Ushs 6.258,065,124 (Kshs 295M ) ‘epresenting custom duties outstanding on import of Bamburi cement
brand from Kenya to Uganda, covering the period 2001 -2003. The URA alleges that Hima Cement Limited's purchase of
cement from a sister Lafarge company were not at arms length. The normal process for tax customs and exercise
calculations is that these taxes are levied at point of entry using General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade {GATT) rules. The
company’s position s that it hag paid all taxes, as assessed on this basis, in this period. Upon protest from the comparny,
the URA has since revisad this estimate o Ushs 2,700,000,000(Kshs 106M). However Hima Cement Limited stil maintains
that there is no liabiiity due from them ang are awaiting the outcome of ancther revised assessment from the URA, The
directors are of the view that there is a Very remote possibility of this amount being paid.

28 CAPITAL COM MITMENTS

GROUP
2005 2004
Shs’million Shs’million
Property, plant and equipment 35 8
Capital expenditure authorised but not contracted for
at the balance sheet date:
GROUP
2005 2004
Shs’million Shs’million

Property, plant ang equipment 5,288 668
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30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations:

et o g e T T

GROUP
2005 2004
Shs’million Shs’million
Profit before tax 3,147 2,786
Adjustments for:
Depreciation (note 12} 668 680
Arnortisation of intangibie assets (note 14) 29 40
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 27} (66)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets (1 -
Impaired assets writtén down - 17
Profit on sale of equity investments . 27}
Interest income (note 8) (18) (18)
Dividend income (note 8) (28) (46)
Interest expense (note 8) 35 53
Armnortisation of goodwill (note 18) - 50
3,807 3,469
Changes in working capital balances
- trade and other receivables 8 25
- inventories {131 (88)
- Trade and cther payabies (189) 204
- provisicns for liabilities and charges 97 61
3,592 3,761
The exchange movements attributable to movement of working
capital are as follows:
inventories (17 (103
Trade and other receivables (5) {28)
Trade and other payaties (@ {(56)

Provisions for liabilities and charges 3 -

(26) (187)
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31 RELATED PARTIES

The ultimata parent of the group is Lafarge SA, incorporated in France. There are cther companies which ars ralated to
Bamburi Cement Limitad through common shareholdings or cormmon directorships.

In the normal course of businass the group sells cament to an associate of its ultimate shareholder. Thess sales
represented approximately 139% of the group’s sales valume during tha vear (2004: 12%}.

The company receives t&chnical assistance from the majority shareholdar, which i8 paid for under a five year agreement.

The following transactions were carried out with related Partias during the vear.

GROUP
2005 2004
Shs’million Shs’million
Sales of goods and setvices 417 525
Purchases of go0ds and services 153 238

Sales and purchases to/from relatedq partiss were made on terms and conditions similar to those offerad to major
Cusiomars or available from major suppliers.

Cutstanding balances arising from sale and purchase of goods/services at the year end.

GROUP COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
Shs’'million Shs’million Shs’million Shs’million
Receivables from related parties ‘ 116 200 114 200
Receivabies from subsidiariez - - 479 280
116 200 5483 480
Fayables to related parties - 67 36 67
Short term cash deposits 288 222 289 181

Short term cash deposits are held with the princigal shareholder's central treasury department at terms similar to those .
offered by other financial institutions,

Key management compensation
The remuneration of directors and other membars of key managament during the year were as follows:

GROUP
2004
Shs’ million Shs’ million
Salaries and othar short-term empioyment benefits 84 70

Post—employmem benefits 4 4
\%M

Uirectorg’ remuneration

Feas for sarvices as a director 6 6

Gther emoluments 88 74
94 80
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32 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

GROUP
2005 2004
Shs’ million Shs' million
L ease payments committed under operating leases:
Not later than 1 year 55 8
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 35 5
a0 59
33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
At the year end the company had a number of off balance sheet financial instruments. These are:
. Forward exchange contracts entered into with financial institutions 1c purchase forward United States doliars

against the Uganda shilings. At 31 December 2005, the company had six forward contracts totaling US$ 6.4 m
(United States dollars six million and four hundred thousana) with maturities ranging between 30 days and 105
days and at rates UGX/AUSS$ {Uganda Shiling to the United States dollar) of between UGX1812/1 US$ to
1829/1US83. The forward contracts were entered into as hedges against Hima Cement Limited’s future payments
denominated in United States Dollars from January 2006 to April 2006

. The company had entered intc a fuel SWAP contract with financial institutions, through the treasury department
of its uitimate shareholder, to fix the fuel Platt price at US$ 300 per mt for 556 MT per month from January 2006

to June 2006. The fuel SWAP contract was entered intc as a hedge against adverse fuel prices for the group’s
fuel oil purchases used in the cement manufacture process in all plants L.e. Rima, Nairobi and Mombasa plants.

34 GCOUNTRY OF INCORPORATION

The company is incorporated and domiciled in Kenya under the Companias Act.

35 CURRENCY

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (ifs functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the resuits
and financial position of each entity are presented in Kenya Shilings million {Shs' million), which is the functional currency of
the group, and the presentation currency for the consalidated financial statements.




THE TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder Number of shares ¢, of shares
1 Fincem Holdings 106,360,798 29.3
2 Kencem holdings Limited 106,360,797 29.3
3 Board of Trustees NSSF 58,896,522 16.5
4 Bamcem Holdings 50,000,000 13.78
5 Baloobhai Chhotabhai Patel 4,410,790 1.22
6 Barclays {Kenya) Nominees Ltd (A/c 1256) 2,130,650 0.59
7 Old Mutual Life Assurance Company Limited 1,472,740 0.41
8 Barclays {Kenya) Nominees Ltd {A/c 1853) 1,395,378 0.38
9 Barclays {Kenya) Nominees Ltd (A/c 9230) 1,178,179 0.32
10 Kenya Reinsurance Corperation Limited 1,071,543 0.30

Total of 10 above 333,277,397 92.10

2503 other shareholders 29,681,878 7.90
Total shareholding 362,959,275 100




LAFARGE GROUP OF COMPANIES

LAFARGE IN BRIEF

Bamburi Cement Limited is a subsidiary cf Lafarge. Lafarge, the world leader in building materials, holds top ranking
positions in all four of its businesses: Cement, Roofing, Aggregates & Goncrete and Gypsum.

In 2005, the Lafarge Group is present in 75 countries with 80,000 employees. Its sales for 2005 amounted to 18 billion
Euros and current operating profit was 2.4 billion Euros.

Lafarge places the customer at the heart of its business. It offers the construction industry and general public innovative
solutions that bring greater safety, comfort and quality to their everyday surroundings. Lafarge offers all construction

industry sectors; from architect to tradesman, from districutor to end user a comprehensive range of products and
solutions for each stage of the building process.

2005 KEY FIGURES

Sales by region Sales by business

Employees by region Employees by business

& ‘western Europe & Coment
@ Hortn America @ Aggregates and Concrete
@ Centraland Eastem Europe @ Reofng
& Asia-Paciic & Gyosum
() Latin America @ Others

@ Medieranean Basin
@ Sub-Sanaran Atrica and Indian Ceean




LAFARGE GROUP OF COMPANIES

CEMENT DIVISION -

The Cement Division benefits from a thriving internaticnal presence. Cement division companies operate in 43 countries,
selling lines of cement, hydraulic binders and lime for construction, renovation and public projects. Lafarge has over 140
industrial sitas throughout the world.

SALES 2005
7,595 millicn Euros

WORKFORCE 2005
40,067 employses

LAFARGE WORLDWIDE PRESENCE




LAFARGE GROUP OF COMPANIES

. LAFARGE PRINCIPLES OF ACTION

° The Lafarge group wants to be recognised as a true leader creating sustainable value for our customers, employees and
other stakeholders.

SAFETY

QOur ambition is to be among the safest industrial groups in the world.
. We work continucusly with our employees and contractors to achiave the best results in safety.
e« We are committed to protecting life throughout our organisation.

CUSTOMER ORIENTATION

We want to be the business partner of choice to our customers by supplying an innovative range of products

and services recognised as superior by our customers. )

. Carrying out proactive research and product development which anticipates the evolution of relevant building materials
and focus on the future needs of end-users.

. { ead the market in product consistency, ease of use, usage qualities and positioning our brands for maximum
effectiveness.

. Earn additional recognition from superior customer service through leveraging on logistics opportunities.

INDUSTRIAL EXCELLENCE

Qur goal is to assert our industrial leadership and drive the industry towards world class performance.

. Resolve daily operational challenges with sustainable solutions.

e Work with our globa! network to reduce our CO2 émissions by 20% by 2010.

. Confirm cur leadership by active benchmarking and reacting faster than competitors to the indusirial challenges of
fomorrow.

. Drive the developrment and application of new fechnologies in our industry.

. improve asset utilisation effectiveness by increasing investrnent yields and reducing working capital.

PEOPLE MOBILISATION

~ We want to attract, develop and retain the best people to achieve a major step change in our results.
. Build a competitive advantage from the size and divarsity of our Group, whie developing an increasing sense of
belonging.
. Develop the expertise and leaders to meet the organisation’s future needs through employee learning and
development, innovafion and knowledge management.
s  Drive management process towards the empowerment of individuals and teams while maintaining accountabiiity for
rewarding resuits.
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